O 0 3 N A W N

NN NN N N N NN R /3 32 = om m m m em m
0 N N L R W N = O V0 0N DR W N O

JOHN M. McCOY III, Cal. Bar No. 166244

Regional Trial Counsel

Email: mccoyj@sec.gov

LORRAINE B. ECHAVARRIA, Cal. Bar No. 191860

E-mail: echavarrial@sec.gov

KAROL L.K. POLLOCK, Cal. Bar No. 77009

Email: pollockk@sec.gov .

MELISSIA A. BUC LTER-HONORE, Louisiana Bar No. 23429
Email: buckhalter-honorem@sec.gov

Attorneys for Plaintiff o

Securities and Exchange Commission

Rosalind R. Tyson, Reilonal. Director .
Michele Wein Layne, Associate Regional Director
5670 Wilshire Boulevard, 11th Floor

Los Angeles, California 90036

Telephone: (323) 965-3998

Facsimile: (323) 965-3908

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF ARIZONA
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Case No.
COMMISSION,
.. COMPLAINT FOR
Plaintiff, VIOLATIONS OF THE
FEDERAL SECURITIES
VS. LAWS
BRETT C. MAAS,
Defendant.

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission’)
alleges as follows:
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1.  This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections
21(d)(1), 21(e), 21A(a)(1)(A), and 27 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (“Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d)(1), 78u(e), 78u-1(a)(1)(A), &

78aa. Defendant has, directly or indirectly, made use of the means or

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or of the facilities of a
national securities exchange in connection with the transactions, acts,

practices, and courses of business alleged in this Complaint.

Case 2:08-cv-01947-MHM  Document 1  Filed 10/23/2008 Page 1 of 6



O 00 3 &N W bW =

NN N N DN DN N N N = o e e e e el e e
0 ~1] O\ W KW= O O X NN R W = O

2. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to Section 27 of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa, because certain of the transactions, acts,
practices, and courses of business constituting violations of the federal
securities laws occurred within this district, and defendant resides within this
district.

SUMMARY
3. This matter involves unlawful insider trading in the securities of

Manatron, Inc. (“Manatron”) by defendant, Brett C. Maas (“Maas”), the

owner and president of Hayden Communications, Inc. (“Hayden”), an
investor relations firm hired by Manatron. Maas purchased shares of
Manatron stock on January 14, 2008, immediately after he learned of a
pending acquisition of Manatron by an affiliate of Thoma Cressey Bravo.
After the merger was announced on January 15, 2008, Maas sold all his
Manatron shares, realizing a profit of $59,077.31.

4. By engaging in the conduct described in this Complaint, Maas
violated the antifraud provisions of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5. The
Commission seeks a judgment permanently enjoining Maas against future
violations of the federal securities laws, ordering disgorgement of ill-gotten
gains and prejudgment interest thereon, and imposing a civil penalty.

THE DEFENDANT
5. Brett C. Maas, 32, is a resident of Glendale, Arizona. Maas is

the owner of Hayden. Hayden entered into a contract with Manatron on
April 1, 2002 to perform strategic market analyses and investor relations
services.

RELATED ENTITIES

6. Manatron, Inc. (“Manatron”) is a Michigan corporation

headquartered in Kalamazoo, Michigan. Manatron provides data processing
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systems for local governments. Until its acquisition by TCB on April 1,
2008, Manatron’s common stock traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under
the symbol “MANA.” |

7. Thoma Cressey Bravo (“TCB”) is a Delaware corporation
headquartered in Chicago, Illinois. TCB is a private equity firm providing
services in growth capital, family business, and other recapitalizations.

THE DEFENDANT’S FRAUDULENT CONDUCT
8.  Hayden hired Maas as a consultant in 2002. In 2006, Maas

purchased Hayden from its prior owner. Maas’s employment
responsibilities included reviewing press releases for Hayden clients.
Manatron became a client of Hayden on or about April 1, 2002.

9. In 2007, Manatron began merger negotiations with an affiliate
of Thoma Cressey Bravo (“TCB”), a private equity firm. On January 14,
2008, Manatron’s chief executive officer contacted Hayden’s regional vice-
president to inform him of material, nonpublic information concerning
TCB’s agreement to acquire Manatron. Immediately thereafter, Hayden’s
regional vice-president informed Maas of the material, nonpublic
information concerning TCB’s agreement to acquire Manatron, which was
consistent with company practice that information of this nature be
communicated to Maas.

10. On January 14, 2008, shortly after receiving the material,
nonpublic information about TCB’s agreement to acquire Manatron, Maas
purchased 20,000 shares of Manatron stock at an average price of $8.35 per
share, for a total purchase price of $172,490.47.

11.  Prior to the market opening on January 15, 2008, Manatron and
TCB announced their pending merger. Manatron’s stock price rose by |
$2.82, or approximately 32% from the prior day’s close. The tradihg

volume rose from an average of 8,500 shares traded per day to 630,000
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shares traded on the day of the merger announcement.

12.  On January 15, 2008, Maas sold all 20,000 of his Manatron
shares at an average price of $11.58 per share, realizing a total sales price of
$231,567.78, and a profit of $59,077.31.

13. Maas engaged in unlawful insider trading in connection with
his purchase of Manatron shares prior to the public announcement of
Manatron’s acquisition by TCB because he purchased those shares while in
possession of material, non-public information in breach of his duty of trust
and confidence to Manatron and its shareholders.

14. Maas acted with scienter. Maas knew, or was reckless in not
knowing, that the information he learned in the January 14, 2008 telephone
call about TCB’s pending acquisition of Manatron was material, non-public
information. Maas knew he owed a duty of trust and confidence to
Manatron and its shareholders. Despite this knowledge, Maas purchased
20,000 shares of Manatron stock on January 14, 2008 on the basis of this
material, non-public information.

CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FRAUD IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PURCHASE OR SALE OF SECURITIES
Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
and Rule 10b-5 Thereunder

15. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 14 above.

16. Defendant Maas, by engaging in the conduct described above,
directly or indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of a security,
by the use of means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails,
or of the facilities of a national securities exchange, with scienter:

a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud;

Case 2:08-cv-01947-MHM  Document 4 Filed 10/23/2008 Page 4 of 6



O 0 3 N W»n b W N

NN NN NN NN = e e e s e e e e
0 -3 SN WU A W N = O YW oo NN B RW NN = O

b.  made untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to
state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; or

C. engaged in acts, practices or courses of business which
operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon other
persons.

17. By engaging in the conduct described above, defendant Maas
violated, and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Section
10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder,
17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court:
I

Issue a final judgment, in a form consistent with Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d),
permanently enjoining defendant Maas and his agents, servants, employees,
and attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with any
of them, who receive actual notice of the final judgment by personal service
or otherwise, and each of them, from violating Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §
240.10b-5.

IL.

Order defendant Maas to disgorge all ill-gotten gains from his illegal

conduct, together with prejudgment interest thereon.
I11.

Order defendant Maas to pay a civil penalty under Section 21A(a) of

the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78u-1(a).

*
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IV.

Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of
equity and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and
carry out the terms of all orders and decrees that may be entered, or to
entertain any suitable application or motion for additional relief within the
jurisdiction of this Court.

V.
Grant such other and further relief as this Court may determine to be

just and necessary.

DATED: October ﬁ%es W / 5 S Honstd

Melissia A. Buckhalter-Honore
Attorney for Plaintiff
Securities and Exchange Commission
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

District of Arizona

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION
V.
BRETT MAAS

CASE NUMBER:

TO: (Name and address of Defendant)

Brett Maas
6745 N. 93rd Avenue, #1144
Glendale, Arizona 85305

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to serve on PLAINTIFF’S ATTORNEY (name and address)

John M. McCoy I

Melissia A. Buckhalter-Honore
Securities and Exchange Commission
5670 Wilshire Boulevard, 11th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90036

an answer to the complaint which is served on you with this summons, within 20 days after service
of this summons on you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgment by default will be taken against you
for the relief demanded in the complaint. Any answer that you serve on the parties to this action must be filed with the
Clerk of this Court within a reasonable period of time after service.

CLERK DATE

(By) DEPUTY CLERK
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